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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Siam Wellness Group
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Siam Wellness Group Public

Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of
Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2020, their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting

Standards.
Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfiled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

| draw attention to Note 1.2 to the consolidated financial statements regarding the effect of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the business operation of the Group in terms of temporary shutdown of
spa and hotel business as required by a resolution of the cabinet and the Declaration of Provincial
Governors in accordance with The surveillance, screening, and prevention and control measures
announced in March 2020. Although spa and hotel business resumed their operation in June
2020, a new wave of the COVID-19 pandemic occurred during the end of 2020. This has slowed
down the economic recovery, and adversely affected most businesses and industries.

This situation significantly affects the Group’s business activities relating to spa and hotel
business and this is significantly impacting the Group’s financial position, operating results, and
cash flows at present, including compliance with debt covenants, and is expected to do so in the
future, also the assessment of the financial impact in respect of an uncertainty of the COVID-19

pandamic situation.

As a result of such situation, the Group had total current liabilities exceeded its total current
assets by Baht 129.8 million (the Company only: Baht 147.6 million) and had operating losses for
the year 2020 of Baht 209.1 million (the Company only: Baht 179.8 million). The Group had the
measures to maintain its cash flow level for debt settlement and for its business operations by
negotiating with the lessors to obtain the rental discount for each spa retail stores, and seeking
source of funds. In addition, the Group received waiver letters for not complying with such
covenants from the banks. The Group believes that there will be the adequate cash flows for
settlement of such loans and lease liabilities which are to be due within one year and for use in its
operations. Furthermore, the Group is in the process of implementing a business plan to improve
its operations and turn a profit in the future. Therefore, the Group believes that it will be able to
continue its operation as a going concern. However, these circumstances may give rise to
significant doubts as to the Group’s ability to continue its operations as a going concern. This may
depend on the outcome of the ability of the Group to achieve its operational plans, and the relief
of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in the future.

My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of Matters

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in the fourth quarter of 2020,

the Group assessed the financial impacts of the uncertainties of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
valuation of receivables, property plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets
and goodwill. As a result, in preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has decided to discontinue application of the relief
measures relating to determining expected credit losses, in cases where the Group uses a
simplified approach, measuring the fair values of land, reversal of deferred tax assets, impairment
of assets, and impairment of goodwill, which the Company elected to apply during the first quarter
to the third quarter of 2020. However, the Group has elected to continue to apply the temporary
relief measure on a lease modification.

Moreover, the Group has adopted TFRS 16 Leases which is effective in the current year.
My opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in my professional judgement, was of most significance in my
audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of
my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not

provide a separate opinion on this matter.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for my audit opinion on

the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below.
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Revenue from Services

The revenue from services related to spa business of the Company is the main revenue of the
Group, representing 81% of total Group’s revenues. Such revenue is derived from provision of
services to a large number of individual customers through a variety of sales channels and many
spa branches for the spa business. Therefore, | addressed the occurrence and accuracy of the

revenue from services as a key audit matter.

| have examined the revenue from services by assessing and testing, on a sampling basis, the
Company'’s internal controls with respect to the revenue cycle, understanding the nature of
services condition to evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policy, examining supporting
documents, on a sampling basis, for revenue from services transactions occurring during the year
and near the end of the accounting period, reviewing credit notes that the Company issued after
the period-end, and performing analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible
irregularities in revenue from services transactions throughout the period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

During 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic is resulting in an economic slowdown and adversely
impacting most businesses and industries which also significantly affects the Group’s business
activities. Such event is an indicator indicates that property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of the Group may be impaired. The Group had property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets representing 85% of total Group’s assets. In determining the impairment loss,
management had to exercise judgement with respect to determination of the cash-generating unit,
financial model, the projections of future operating performance, plans for management of assets
of the Group, and determination of an appropriate discount rate and key assumptions. Therefore,

| addressed the measurement of allowance for impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter.

| have assessed appropriateness of determination of cash-generaing unit and the financial model
selected by management. | also tested the significant assumptions applied by management in
preparing estimates of the cash flows expected to be realised in the future by comparing such
assumptions with outside and inside sources and, reviewing the accuracy of past cash flow
projections in comparison with actual operating results in order to assess the reliability of the cash
flow projections. | also considered the appropriateness of management’s assumptions through
analysis of the weighted-average cost of discount rate and tested the calculation of the realisable

value of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets using the selected financial model.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available

to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction

of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor’

s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will

always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:;

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, | determine that matter that
was of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. | describe this matter in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,

| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Se—

Sumana Punpongsanon

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5872

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 22 February 2021
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Lease receivables - current portion
Share return receivables - current portion
Inventories

Other current assets

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

Non-current assets

Restricted deposits of financial institution
Lease receivables - net of current portion
Share return receivables - net of current portion
Investments in subsidiaries

Leasehold rights

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Deposits

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financlal statements

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
9 114,526,451 52,560,775 91,132,914 44,616,519
10 4,005 73,098,036 1,001 15,391,509
7, 11 21,774,888 37,213,048 21,873,875 35,971,864
7 - - 160,014 =
12 9,462,337 39,200,000 9,462,337 39,200,000
13 40,298,517 39,901,140 36,682,758 37,348,254
13,024,171 14,824,131 10,917,568 11,186,151
189,090,369 256,797,130 170,230,487 183,714,297
17 32,294,702 32,294,702 32,294,702 32,294,702
231,385,071 289,091,832 202,525,169 216,008,999
14 5,158,568 5,105,511 - -
7 - - 26,114,534 -
12 32,587,252 15,000,000 32,587,252 15,000,000
15 - - 101,705,464 101,705,464
16 - 9,264,616 - 9,264,616
17 1,074,588,204 1,082,796,817 995,606,540 1,004,420,713
23 1,169,555,518 - 1,134,193,664 -
18 24,535,709 24,535,709 20,340,000 20,340,000
19 9,086,049 9,138,709 8,976,437 8,953,074
29 819,991 722,569 - -
81,107,740 79,466,127 80,564,191 78,922,578
3,284,819 1,023,513 3,147,643 932,113
2,400,723,851 1,227,053,571 2,403,235,725 1,239,538,558

2,632,108,922 1,516,145,403

2,605,760,894 1,455,547,557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts from financial institution

Short-term loans from and interest payable to related parties

Trade and other payables
Current portion of long-term loans

Current portion of lease liabilities

Current portion of liabilities under finance lease agreements

Income tax payable

Advance received - current portion
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long term toans - net of current portion
Long-term loans from related parties

Lease liabilities - net of current portion

Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net of

current portion
Advance received - net of current portion
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit; Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
20 - 31,621 = -
7 4,615,343 - -
7, 21 44,661,830 96,717,531 51,162,205 95,028,821
22 103,354,149 80,200,000 93,354,149 80,200,000
23 169,178,668 - 166,176,007 -
23 = 120,268 - 120,268
3,212,754 24,829,017 23,929,843
31 38,977,891 28,922,429 38,187,478 27,739,841
1,769,897 9,631,473 1,214,955 8,954,550
361,155,189 245,067,682 350,094,794 235,973,323
22 287,812,518 80,166,667 272,812,518 80,166,667
7 = = 30,000,000 -
7, 23 1,028,672,407 - 1,020,886,589 -
23 260,100 - 260,100
31 9,758,854 12,161,574 9,758,854 12,161,574
24 10,124,418 8,555,660 9,043,083 7,682,818
29 11,744,592 17,995,399 11,748,672 18,004,641
17,628,899 19,999,199 16,639,937 19,054,214
1,365,741,688 139,138,599 1,370,889,653 137,330,014
1,726,896,877 384,206,281 1,720,984,447 373,303,337
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company LImited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Registered
855,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.25 each
(2019: 570,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.25 each)
Issued and paid-up
854,999,928 ordinary shares of Baht 0.25 each
(2019: 570,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.25 each)
Share premium
Discount on business combination under common control
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve
Unappropriated
Other components of shareholders' equity
Equity attributable to shareholders' of the Company
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries
Total shareholders' equity

Total liabllities and shareholders' equity

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
26

213,750,000 142,500,000 213,750,000 142,500,000
213,749,982 142,500,000 213,749,982 142,500,000
278,905,854 278,905,854 278,905,854 278,905,854
(46,226,479) (46,226,479) - -
25 17,398,695 16,380,580 14,250,000 14,250,000
350,811,968 649,804,725 287,303,176 556,020,931
90,567,435 90,567,435 90,567,435 90,567,435
905,207,455 1,131,932,115 884,776,447 1,082,244,220
4,590 7,007 - -
905,212,045 1,131,939,122 884,776,447 1,082,244,220

2,632,108,922

1,516,145,403

2,605,760,894

1,455,647 557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidlaries
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Unit; Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Continuing operations
Revenues
Revenue from sales 31 68,604,224 90,319,905 21,427,048 61,047,896
Revenue from services 31 358,307,945 1,293,366,625 348,577,728 1,261,464,231
Dividend income - - 23,698,006 1,597,672
Other income 6,382,322 18,719,624 10,229,033 26,169,965
Total revenues 433,294 491 1,402,406,154 403,931,815 1,350,279,764
Expenses
Cost of sales 34,596,940 46,333,502 15,119,776 35,818,265
Cost of services 472,043,884 896,230,697 457,604,349 899,956,658
Selling and distribution expenses 34,200,600 52,452,754 26,913,424 47,549,982
Administrative expenses 84,457,030 110,112,312 72,906,444 98,061,312
Total expenses 625,298,454 1,105,129,265 572,543,993 1,081,386,217

Profit {loss) before finance cost and tax income (expenses)

from continuing operations

Finance income

(192,003,963)
2,330,201

297,276,889
735,081

(168,612,178)
4,150,010

268,893,547
631,018

Fihance cost 27 (21,495,787) (10,485,168) (21,486,537) (10,150,452)
Profit (loss) before tax income (expenses) from

continuing operations (211,169,549) 287,526,802 (185,948,705) 259,374,113
Tax Income (expenses) 29 2,084,184 (45,193,539) 6,120,650 (41,863,017)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations (209,085,365) 242,333,263 (179,828,055) 217,511,096
Discontinued operation
Profit from discontinued operation, net of income tax

expenses 12 - 3,644,257 - -
Profit (loss) for the year (209,085,365) 245,977,520 (179,828,055) 217,511,096
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gain - net of income tax 24 B 8,508,382 - 6,345,039
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax - 8,508,382 - 6,345,039
Total other comprehensive income for the year < 8,508,382 - 6,345,039
Total comprehensive income for the year (209,085,365) 254,485,902 (179,828,055) 223,856,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (179,828,055) 217,511,096
Continuing operations (209,084,942) 242,329,438
Discontinued operation - 3,139,729
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the Company (209,084,942) 245,469,167
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries
Continuing operations (423) 3,825
Discontinued operation - 504,528
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to non-controiling
interests of the subsidiaries (423) 508,353
(209,085,365) 245,977,520
Total comprehenslve income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (179,828,055) 217,511,096
Continuing operations (209,084,942) 250,837,755
Discontinued operation - 3,139,729
Total comprehensive income attributable to the Company (209,084,942) 253,977 484
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries
Continuing operations (423) 3,890
Discontinued operation - 504,528
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
interest of the subsidiaries (423) 508,418
(209,085,365) 254,485,902
(Unit: Baht per share)
Earnings per share 30 (Restated) (Restated)
Basic earnings per share
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holder of the Company (0.210) 0.254
Profit (loss) from continuing operations (0.245) 0.283
Profit from discontinued operation - 0.004
(0.245) 0.287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Siam Wellness Group Publlic Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before income tax from continuing operations (211,169,549) 287,526,802 (185,948,705) 259,374,113
Profit before income tax from discontinued operation - 4,216,789 - -
Profit (loss) before income tax (211,169,549) 291,743,591 (185,948,705) 259,374,113
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation 206,382,164 117,627,778 194,129,351 108,031,005
Unrealised gain (loss) on the change in fair value of
trading securities 199,703 (44,704) 47,651 (47,624)
Unrealised loss on the change in fair value of
share return receivables 2,433,509 - 2,433,509 -
Bad debts and allowance for doubtful accounts (reversal) (98,620) 679,060 (262,290) 553,057
Reduction of inventories to net realisable value (reversal) 3,698,831 (313,519) 3,673,914 (17,044)
Gain on disposat of property, plant and equipment (490,977) (42,737) (365,815) (32,046)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets (929) = - .
Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment 5,656,334 452,311 5,621,047 452,309
Loss on write-off of right-of-use assets 342 - 342
Loss on lease agreements cancelfation 37,846 - 37,846 -
Loss on write-off of intangible assets 8,025 . 8,025 -
Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment 358,609 - 358,609
Loss on impairment of right-of-use assets 201,391 - 201,391 -
Long-term employee benefit expenses 1,568,758 4,710,122 1,360,265 3,929,367
Dividend income - - (23,698,006) (1,597,672)
Interest income (2,328,126) (427,060) (4,147,935) (622,068)
Interest expenses 21,495,787 10,485,168 21,486,537 10,150,452
Profit from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities 27,853,098 424,870,010 14,735,736 380,173,849
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Current investments 72,894,328 (41,021,554) 15,342,857 (15,310,645)
Trade and other receivables 15,377,086 (14,379,877) 14,200,585 (15,955,394)
Inventories (4,096,208) (8,549,082) (2,908,418) (6,678,087)
Other current assets 2,822,619 (6,264,374) 1,295,466 (3,002,393)
Deposit (4,743,075) (1,721,227) (4,743,075) (1,897,177)
Other non-current assets (998,950) (703,362) (963,174) (616,964)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables (25,855,168) 8,820,036 (18,347,679) 8,458,535
Advance received 7.652,742 7,489,061 8,044,917 8,062,927
Other current liabilities (7,861,576) 1,016,709 (7,739,595) 1,247,252
Other non-current liabilities (2,919,111) 4,810,227 (2,954,611) 4,751,168
Cash flows from operating activities 80,125,785 374,366,567 15,973,009 359,233,071
Cash paid for interest expenses (21,632,130) (9,691,807) (21,020,238) (9,564,690)
Cash paid for income tax (25.744.088) (39,231 .372)[“\ (23,929,843) (34,155,926)
Net cash flows from operating activities 32.?@;{6? 325,443,388 »{ (26,977,072) 315,512,455
Vi‘u—q( . "
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. q ’it.“‘s IAM
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in restricted deposits at financial institution

Cash paid for acquisition of leasehold rights on land

Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Cash paid for acquisition of intangible assets

Cash reeived from repayment of long-term loan to subsidiary
Cash received from lease receivables

Proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceed from disposal of intangible assets

Cash paid for investment in subsidiary

Cash received from disposal investment in subsidiary

Cash received from dividend from investment in subsidiary
Cash received from interest income

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease in bank overdrafts from financial institution
Repayment in liabilities under financial lease agreements
Cash received from long-term loans from financial institution
Cash paid for repayment of long-term loan from financial institution
Cash paid for repayment of short-term loan from related parties
Cash received from long-term loans from subsidiaries
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary

Cash paid for equity to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
Cash paid for dividend

Net cash flows from (used In) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
(53,057) (52,526) - -
- (2,100,000) - (2,100,000)
(141,133,891) (157,901,712) (129,658,013) (156,193,269)
(1,787,567) (1,820,467) (1,787,567) (1,772,968)
= - 8,000,000
- - 123,756 -
1,839,186 603,241 1,120,692 587,831
32,000 - - -
- (93,750,000) (93,750,000)
9,200,000 39,650,000 9,200,000 39,550,000
= - 23,698,006 1,597,672
321,480 427,061 2,141,289 786,519
(131,581,849) (215,044,403) (95,161,837) (203,294,215)
(31,621) (1,310,030) - =
(48,867,508) (103,827) (48,044,677) (103,827)
245,000,000 170,000,000 220,000,000 170,000,000
(14,200,000) (219,863,333) (14,200,000) (219,863,333)
(4,000,000) - - =
- - 30,000,000 =
(1,994) (504,528) - -

= (256) -

(17,100,019)

(85,500,000)

(17,100,019)

(85,500,000)

160,798,858 (137,281,974) 170,655,304 (135,467,160)
61,965,676 (26,882,989) 46,516,395 (23,248,920)
52,560,775 79,443,764 44 616,519 67,865,439

114,526,451 52,560,775 91,132,914 44,616,519
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Supplemental cash flows information
Non-cash transactions
Share return receivables - 54,200,000 - 54,200,000
Increase in non-current assets classified as held for sale - 32,294,702 - 32,294,702
Increase in liabilities from acquisition of
equipment under financial lease agreement - 132,413 - 132,413
Increase (decrease) in liabilities from acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (13,876,637) 4,511,653 (13,312,888) 4,256,388
Increase in provision for dismantling, removing and
restoring of leasehold improvements 548,810 684,293 540,333 676,695
Actuarlal gain - 10,600,175 - 7,931,299

Stock dividend payment 71,249,982 - 71,249,982 <
Decrease in right-of-use assets from the effect of

changes from agreements 9,924,909 - 9,924,909 -
Decrease in right-of-use assets from the effect of

changes from lease agreements cancellation 3,846,206 - 3,846,206 -

Decrease in lease liabilities from the effect of changes

from lease agreements 9,924,909 - 9,924,909
Decrease in lease liabilities from the effect of changes from

lease agreements cancellation 3,808,018 - 3,808,018 -
Increase in lease liabilities from new agreements 173,148,194 - 173,148,194 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.  General information
1.1 General information of the Company

Siam Wellness Group Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as limited
company under the laws of Thailand on 28 November 2001. The Company operates in
Thailand and principally engages in spa services business. Its registered head office is at No.
483, Soi Suthiporn, Pracha-Songkroh Road, Dindang, Dindang, Bangkok. As at 31 December
2020, the Company has a total of 65 branches in Bangkok and upcountry (2019: 58 branches)
and 5 foreign branches according to the franchise agreement (2019: 5 foreign branch).

The Company registered in the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 31 October 2014 and its
common shares had been approved to be listed in the MAI (MAI: Market of Alternative

Investment).
1.2 Coronavirus disease 2019 Pandemic and fundamental accounting assumptions

The business operation of the Group has been affected from the effect of the COVID-19
pandemic in terms of temporary shutdown of spa and hotel business as required by a
resolution of the cabinet and the Declaration of Provincial Governors in accordance with The
surveillance of screening, and prevention and control measures announced in March 2020.
Although spa and hotel business resumed their operations in June 2020, a new wave of the
COVID-19 pandemic occurred during the end of 2020. This has slowed down the economic
recovery and adversely affected most businesses and industries. This situation significantly
affects the Group’s business activities relating to spa and hotel business and this is
significantly impacting the Group’s financial position, operating results, and cash flows at
present, including compliance with debt covenants, and is expected to do so in the future,
also the assessment of the financial impact in respect of an uncertainty of the COVID-19

pandemic situation.

As a result of such situation, the Group had total current liabilities exceeded its total current
assets by Baht 129.8 million (the Company only: Baht 147.6 million) and had operating losses
for the year 2020 of Baht 209.1 million (the Company only: Baht 179.8 million). The Group
had the measures to maintain its cash flow level for debt settlement and for its business
operations by negotiation with the lessors to obtain the rental discount for each spa retail
stores, and seeking source of funds for whigh in February 2027\ the Group submitted the
request for soft loan credit facilities from the@ank. And on 19 Fgruary 2021’the Group got
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2.1

2.2

the approval of such credit facilities from the Bank. In addition, the Group received waiver
letters for not complying with such covenants from the banks as discussed in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group believes that there will be the adequate cash
flows for settlement of such loans and lease liabilities which to be due within one year and for
using in its operations. Furthermore, the Group is in the process of implementing a business
plan to improve its operations and turn a profit in the future. The Group believes that it will be
able to continue its operation as a going concern.

The management believes that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 based on the assumption that the Group will continue

its operations as a going concern.
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation
has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of
Business Development dated 11 October 2016, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543,

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the
Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai

language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Siam Wellness
Group Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary companies
(“the subsidiaries”):

Country of Percentage of
Company's name Nature of business incorporation shareholding
2020 2019

(Percent)  (Percent)
Held by the Company

Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. Hotel and Thailand 99.99 99.99
restaurant
operations

Siam Wellness Lab Co., Ltd. Manufacturing and Thailand 99.99 99.99

distributing spa
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Company’'s name

Nature of business

Country of Percentage of

incorporation shareholding

Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd.

Siam Wellness Group (Hong Kong)
Co., Lid.

A school for Thai
massage

fnvestment for
overseas
expansion of the
spa business

2020 2019

(Percent)  (Percent)

Thailand 99.97 99.97

Hong Kong 100.00 100.00

Siam Wellness Group (Cambodia) Spa business and Cambodia 100.00 100.00
Co,, Ltd. sale of spa
products
Held by subsidiaries
Tiger Eyes Trading (Thailand) Co., Import and sale of Thailand 99.99 99.99
Ltd. (Held by Siam Wellness Lab spa products
Co., Ltd. 99.99 percent)
Shanghai Jia Tai Health Nutritional health China 100.00 100.00
Management Co., Ltd. (Held by and beauty
Siam Wellness Group consulting and
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 100.00 management
percent) service
b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights,
or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the
ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.
c) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.
d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant
accounting policies as the Company.
e) Material balances and transactions between the Group have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.
f) Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the

subsidiaries that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the
consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

2.3 The separate financial statements pr%nt investments in supgidiaries under the cost method.
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3.

New financial reporting standards

a) Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised (revised 2019) and new financial
reporting standards and interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after 1 January 2020. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with
the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statement. However, the new standard

involves changes to key principles, which are summarised below:
Financial reporting standards related to financial instruments

A set of TFRSs related to financial instruments consists of five accounting standards and

interpretations, as follows:
Financial reporting standards:

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Accounting standard:
TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

These TFRSs related to financial instruments make stipulations relating to the
classification of financial instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised
cost (taking into account the type of instrument, the characteristics of the contractual cash
flows and the business model), calculation of impairment using the expected credit loss
method, and hedge accounting. These include stipulations regarding the presentation and

disclosure of financial instruments.
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The impact of the adoption of these standards on the Group's financial statements is as

follows.

Recognition of credit losses - The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses on its financial assets, and it is no longer necessary for a credit-impaired event
to have occurred. The Group applies the simplified approach to consider impairment

of trade receivables.

The Group adopted these financial reporting standards which the cumulative effect is
recognised as an adjustment to the retained earnings as at 1 January 2020, and the

comparative information was not restated.

The cumulative effect of the change is described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.
TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases together with related Interpretations. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term

of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low value.

Accounting by lessors under TFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from TAS 17. Lessors

will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases.

The Group adopted these financial reporting standards using the modified retrospective
method of initial adoption of which the cumulative effect is recognised as rights-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2020, and the comparative information was not

restated.

The cumulative effect of the change is described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Accounting Treatment Guidance on “Temporary Relief Measures on Accounting

Alternatives In Response to the impact of the COVID-19 Situation”

The Federation of Accounting Professions announced Accounting Treatment Guidance
on “Temporary Relief Measures on Accounting Alternatives in Response to the Impact of
the COVID-19 situation”. Its objectives are to alleviate some of the impact of applying
certain financial reporting standards, and to provide clarification about accounting
treatments during the period of unc{ﬁ)ainty relating to tiﬁsituation.
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On 22 April 2020, the Accounting Treatment Guidance was announced in the Royal
Gazette and it is effective for the financial statements prepared for reporting periods

ending between 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020.

During the period from the first quarter to the third quarter of 2020, the Group elected to
apply the temporary relief measures on accounting alternatives relating to:

- Not to take into account forward-looking information when determining expected credit
losses, in cases where the Group uses a simplified approach to determine expected

credit losses.

- Not to use information relating to the COVID-19 situation that may affect financial

forecasts used in measuring the fair values of land.

- Not to account for any reduction in lease payments by lessors resulting from the
COVID-19 situation as a lease modification, with the lease liabilities that come due in
each period reduced in proportion to the reduction and depreciation of right-of-use
assets and interest on lease liabilities recognised in each period reversed in proportion

to the reduction, with any differences then recognised in profit or loss.

- Not to use information relating to the COVID-19 situation in determining whether
sufficient taxable profits will be available in future periods against which deferred tax

assets can be utilised.

- Not to consider the COVID-19 situation as an indication that an asset may be impaired

in accordance with TAS 36, Impairment of Assets.

- Not to use information relating to the COVID-19 situation that may affect the cash flow

forecasts used in testing goodwill for impairment.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, the Group assessed the financial impacts of the uncertainties
of the COVID-19 pandemic on the valuation of receivables, property plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets, and goodwill. As a result, in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has decided to discontinue
application of the temporary relief measures on accounting alternatives relating to
determining expected credit losses, in cases where the Group uses a simplified approach,
measuring the fair values of land, reversal of deferred tax assets, impairment of assets,
and impairment of goodwill, which the Company elected to apply during the first quarter
to the third quarter of 2020.

Such discontinuance application chcounting alternatiyes has no significant impact on

el af4p

the Group's financial statements.
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b)

However, the Group has elected to continue to apply the temporary relief measures on a

lease modification.

Financial reporting standards that became effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after 1 January 2021

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards and interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after
1 January 2021. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for

users of the standards.

The management of the Group is currently evaluating the impact of these standards to the
financial statements in the year when they are adopted.

Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies due to the adoption of new

financial reporting standards

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, during the current year, the

Group has adopted financial reporting standards related to financial instruments and TFRS

16. The cumulative effect of initially applying these standards is recognised as an adjustment

to retained earnings as at 1 January 2020. Therefore, the comparative information was not

restated.

The impacts of changes in accounting policies on the statements of financial position at the

beginning of 2020 due to the adoption of these standards are presented as follows:
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

The impacts of

Financial
reporting
standards
related to
31 December financial 1 January
2019 instruments TFRS 16 2020
Statement of financial position
Assets
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 37,213 (160) - 37,053
Other current assets 14,824 2,022 - 16,486
Non-current assets
Share return receivables - net
current portion 15,000 (517) - 14,483
Leasehold rights 9,265 - (9,265) -
Property, plant and equipment 1,082,797 - (1,599) 1,081,198
Right-of-use assets - - 1,192,289 1,192,289
Deposits 79,466 (4,098) - 75,368
Other non-current assets 1,023 2,078 - 3,101

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 96,718 - (12,325) 84,393
Current portion of liabilities under

finance lease agreements 120 - (120) -
Current portion of lease liabilities - - 155,077 155,077
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities under finance lease

agreements, net of current portion 260 - (260) -
Lease liabilities, net of current

portion - . 1,039,053 1,039,053
Deferred tax liabilities 17,995 (135) - 17,860
Shareholders’ equity
Retained earnings - unappropriated 49,805 ( - 649,265
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

The impacts of

Financial
reporting
standards
related to
31 December financial 1 January
2019 instruments TFRS 16 2020
Statement of financial position
Assets
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 35,972 (160) - 35,812
Current portion of lease receivables - - 124 124
Other current assets 11,186 2,022 - 13,028
Non-current assets
Lease receivables, net of current
portion - - 26,274 26,274
Share return receivables - net
current portion 15,000 (517) - 14,483
Leasehold rights 9,265 - (9,265) -
Property, plant and equipment 1,004,421 - (1,550) 1,002,871
Right-of-use assets = - 1,152,401 1,152,401
Deposits 78,922 (4,098) - 74,824
Other non-current assets 932 2,078 - 3,010
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 95,029 - (12,206) 82,823
Current portion of liabilities under
finance lease agreements 120 - (120) -
Current portion of lease liabilities - - 152,306 152,306
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities under finance lease
agreements, net of current portion 260 - (260) -
Lease liabilities, net of current - : 1,028,264 1,028,264
portion
Deferred tax liabilities 18,005 (135) - 17,870
Shareholders’ equity
Retained earnings - unappropriated Q 556,021 %)) - 555,481
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4.1 Financial instruments

Details of the impact on retained earnings as at 1 January 2020 due to the adoption of financial
reporting standards related to financial instruments are presented as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Recognition of an allowance for expected credit
losses on financial assets (540) (540)
impacts on retained earnings as at 1 January
2020 due to the adoption of financial reporting
standards related to financial instruments (540) (540)
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4.2

As at 1January 2020, the Group has not designated any financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss.

Leases

On adoption of TFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases that

previously classified as operating leases measured at the present value of the remaining lease

payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2020.

For leases that previously classified as finance leases, the Group recognised the carrying

amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities before transition as right-of-use assets and

lease liabilities, respectively at the date of initial application.

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2019
Less: Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
Add: Option to extend lease term
Less: Contracts reassessed as service agreements
Less: Deferred interest expenses
Increase in lease liabilities due to TFRS 16 adoption
Liabilities under finance lease agreements as at

31 December 2019

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2020

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate (percent per

annum)
Comprise of:

Current lease liabilities

Non-current lease liabilities

ol

A
Uridy D100 :\wr\\f

o\

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statement statement
655,488 651,527
(323) (323)
750,306 740,064
(64,067) (64,243)
(147,654) (146,835)
1,193,750 1,180,190
380 380
1,194,130 1,180,570
2.05-3.38 2.05-3.38
155,077 152,306
1,039,053 1,028,264
1,194,130 1,180,570
o
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5.

5.1

The adjustments of right-of-use assets due to TFRS 16 adoption as at 1 January 2020 are

summarised below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statement statement
Land and land improvement 96,166 72,584
Office building and leasehold improvement 1,083,570 1,068,061
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 12,553 11,756
Total right-of-use assets 1,192,289 1,152,401

Significant accounting policies
Revenue and expense recognition

a) Revenues from contracts with customers

The Group accounts for a contract with a customer when it has entered into an agreement
between counter parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations. The Group has
to identify its performance obligations and allocate a transaction price to each obligation

on an appropriate basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, net of
value added tax (“VAT"). Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply

to the contract, control of the asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Detail of revenue recognition of the Group are as follows:
Revenue from sale

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Revenue is measured at
the amount of the consideration received or receivable, excluding value added tax, of
goods supplied after deducting returns, discounts, allowances and price promotions to

customers.
Revenue from spa service

Spa service revenue is reco®—\ised at a point in time upon completion of the service.

\/
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b)

c)

d)

Revenue from franchise agreement

Initial fee from franchise agreement is recognised throughout the period of the agreement.
In addition, monthly revenue sharing is recognised in the amount to which the Company
has a right to invoice as it corresponds directly with the franchisee’s revenues in

accordance with the substance of the relevant franchise agreement.

Revenue from other services that the control of services are transferred to

customers at a point in time

The Group recognises revenue from other services that the contract of services are
transferred to customers at a point in time upon completion of the services.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an
accrual basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, unless the financial assets subsequently become credit-impaired when it
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit loss

allowance).
Finance cost

Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective

interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.
Other expenses

Other expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

\
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5.2

5.3

5.4

Cost to fulfill a contract with customer

The Group recognises costs that relate to satisfied performance obligations in the contract in
profit or loss when incurred except that the Group can identify that the costs relate directly to
a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group can specifically identify, the costs
generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance
obligations in the future, and the costs are expected to be recovered. Therefore, the Group
recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract and amortised to expenses on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition. An allowance for
loss on impairment of assets is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of assets
exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the entity expects to receive less direct

costs.
Balances of contracts with customers

Contract assets

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The

allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.

Contract liabilities

Advance received from customers

The Group recognises a contract liability when the billings to date exceed the cumulative
revenue earned which presented under the caption of “Advance received from customers” in
the statements of financial position and the Group has an obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group fulfils

their performance obligations under the contracts.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, due cheques which are not
yet deposited and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less

and not subject to withdrawal res@ctions. Q
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5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost under the first-in, first-out method and net realisable

value.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when the Company receives economic benefits
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the
cost method.

Leasehold rights

Leasehold rights on land is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for
impairment (if any). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over a

period of lease.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at revalued amount. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Land is initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by an
independent professional appraiser to its fair value. Revaluations are made with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value at the

end of reporting period.
Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation of the Group’s
assets, the increase is credited directly to the other comprehensive income and the
cumulative increase is recognised in equity under the heading of “Surplus on revaluation
of assets”. However, a revaluatign increase is recognised as income to the extent that it

reverses a revaluation decreas respect of the sa % sset previously recognised as an

expense. A '
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5.10

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Group’s
assets, the decrease is recognised in profit or loss. However, the revaluation decrease is
charged to the other comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed an
amount already held in “Surplus on revaluation of assets” in respect of the same asset.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-

line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Land improvement - 5 years

Buildings and building on rental land 20 years and a period of lease

Buildings improvement - 5, 20 years and a period of lease
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 5 years
Motor vehicles - 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of
an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible
assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged

to profit or loss.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives
Licenses 5 and 10 years
Trademark 10 years
Computer software 5 and 10 years
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5.11

5.12

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recorded at cost, which equals to the excess of cost of business
combination over the fair value of the net assets acquired. If the fair value of the net assets
acquired exceeds the cost of business combination, the excess is immediately recognised as

gain in profit or loss.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be

impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the Company’s cash generating units (or group of cash-generating units)
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The Company estimates
the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses

relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

The recoverable amount of each cash generating unit is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation, using cash flow projections extracted from financial budgets approved by the
management. The cash flow projections based on key assumptions regarding revenue growth

rates and discount rates.
Leases

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group as a lessee

Accounting policies adopted since 1 January 2020

The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease
(i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Group recognises right-of-use
assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on lease

payments. Q W&
q .
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Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease less

any lease incentives received.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-

line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Land and land improvement 4 -24 years
Buildings and building improvement 2-12 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

The Group discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit in
the lease or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a

lease of low-value assets is recogn ﬁ as expenses on traight line basis over the lease

term. ”’
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5.13

Accounting policies adopted before 1 January 2020

The Group as a lessee

Leases of property, plant or equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term payables,
while the interest element is charged to profit or loss over the lease period. The assets
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease period.

Leases of property, plant or equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Group as a lessor

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to a lessee is classified as finance leases. As at the commencement date,
an asset held under a finance lease is recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease or the present value of the lease payments receivable and any
unguaranteed residual value. Subsequently, finance income is recognised over the lease term

to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to a lessee. Lease receivables from
operating leases is recognised as income in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying assets and recognised as an expense over the lease term

on the same basis as the lease income.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the

Group, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Group.

They also include associated companies and individuals or enterprises which directly or
indirectly own a voting interest in the Group that gives them significant influence over the
Group, key management personnef; directors, and officefs\with authority in the planning and
direction of the Group’s operationsq

AN ang &1
M;

D0V '\’\QJ\)(\)Nr\M&d\ SIAM 21
o~ WELLNESS
i



5.14

5.15

Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of the
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use asset, and other intangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Group also
carries out annual impairment reviews in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is
recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that,
based on information available, reflects the amount that the Group could obtain from the
disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties,

after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However, in cases where property, plant
and equipment were previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of

such impairment is recognised in equity up to the amount of the previous revaluation.

In the assessment of asset impairment (except for goodwill), if there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying
amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is

that would have been determined, is trégted as a revaluationfyicrease.
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5.16 Employee benefits

5.17

5.18

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as

expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly
contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund's assets are held in a separate trust

fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Defined benefit plans

The Group has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees
upon retirement under labor law. The Group treats these severance payment obligations as

a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified
independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in

other comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan
amendment or curtailment and the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred

tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable pﬂits determined in a@ordance with tax legislation.
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5.19

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Group recognised deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they
recognised deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which

such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Group records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates to items that

are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
Financial instruments

Accounting policies adopted since 1 January 2020

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However,
trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing are measured at the transaction

price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue recognition.
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is
driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate

(“EIR") method and are subject to impai:gnt. Gains and losgss are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised, mod¥ied or impaire::l‘_AS}’ \0"
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Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair

value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

These financial assets include derivatives, security investments held for trading, equity
investments which the Group has not irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI and financial

assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest.
Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised as other income in profit or loss.
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Except for derivative liabilities, at initial recognition the Group’s financial liabilities are
recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
In determining amortised cost, the Group takes into account any fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the

asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts

is recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects

to receive, discounted at an approxima@n of the original ctive interest rate.
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5.20

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is

required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure (a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due and considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to have a significant increase in credit risk and to be in default using

other internal or external information, such as credit rating of issuers.

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. It is based on its historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the

contractual cash flows.
Investments

Accounting policies adopted before 1 January 2020

Investments in securities held for trading are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of

these securities are recorded in profit or loss.
The fair value of unit trusts is determined from their net asset value.
The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the investment is recognised in profit or loss.
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5.21 Fair value measurement

6.1

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Group applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted
market price is not available, the Group measures fair value using valuation technique that
are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable inputs
related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:
Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an active market for such assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly

Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the

reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times
requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that
are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and

estimates are as follows:
Revenue from contracts with customers
Identification of performance obligations

In identifying performance obligations, the management is required to use judgement
regarding whether each promise to deliver goods or services is considered distinct, taking into

consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement. In other words, if a good or service is

separately identifiable from other promlggs in the contract if the customer can benefit from
it, it is accounted for separately. AAAS q > \/
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6.2

Determination of timing of revenue recognition

In determining the timing of revenue recognition, the management is required to use
judgement regarding whether performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in
time, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement. The Group

recognises revenue over time in the following circumstances:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs

- the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

- the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

Where the above criteria are not met, revenue is recognised at a point in time. Where revenue
is recognised at a point in time, the management is required to determine when the
performance obligation under the contract is satisfied.

In calculating the revenue recognised over time, the management is required to use judgement

regarding measuring progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation.
Leases

Determining the lease term with extension and termination options - The Group as a

lessee

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in
assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or
terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic

incentive for the Group to exercise either the extension or termination option.
Estimating the incremental borrowing rate - The Group as a lessee

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the
management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate to
discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds

necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment. Q
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6.3

6.4

Lease classification - The Group as lessor

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to exercise judgement as to whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and

conditions of the arrangement.
Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

In determining an allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables, the management
needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection
history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the forecast economic condition for groupings
of various customer segments with similar credit risks. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast economic conditions may also not be representative of whether a

customer will actually default in the future.
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial
position that are not actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily
available, the management exercises judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and
models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets, and includes
consideration of credit risk, liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial
instruments. Change in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value recognised

in the statement of financial position and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.
Property plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review

estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

The Group measures land at revalued amounts. Such amounts are determined by the

independent value using the comparable market approach.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding

forecast of future revenues and expeﬁes relating to the assets subject to the review.
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6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Goodwill and intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and intangible assets, and subsequent
impairment testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by
the asset or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon

the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.
Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets

In determining allowance for impairment of a non-financial asset, the management is required
to exercise judgements regarding determination of the recoverable amount of the asset, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model
as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
These estimates are most relevant to property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
goodwill recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such
determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary

increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
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Related party transactions

The relationships between the Company and its related parties are summarised below.

Name of related parties Type of business Type of relationship
Siam Weliness Lab Co., Ltd. Manufacturer and sale of spa products A subsidiary
Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd. A school for Thai massage A subsidiary
Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. Hotel and restaurant oper;tions A subsidiary

Chaba Elegance Co., Ltd.

Siam Wellness Group (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd.

Siam Wellness Group (Cambodia)
Co., Ltd.

Tiger Eyes Trading (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Jia Tai Health
Management Co., Ltd.

Blooming Intergift Co., Ltd.

Blooming Co., Ltd.

B.U. Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Cyberprint Group Co., Ltd.
Asian Fortune Property Co., Ltd.
Klom Kliao Pattana Co., Ltd.
G.G.P. Property Co., Ltd.
Sawangsuk Co., Ltd.

Directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries

A related person

Nail polish, hand and foots spa and

eyelash extension business

Investment for overseas expansion of
the spa business

Spa business and sale of spa products

Import and sale of spa products

Nutritional health and beauty
consulting and management service

Property rental:

Sale of gift, a blessed card and
a notebook

Property rental

Printing business

Real estate development

Property rental

Property rental

Food and beverages products

A subsidiary (cancelation-of
related party since October
2019) ' |

A subsidiary

A subsidiary

A subsidiary (held by
a subsidiary)

A subsidiary (held by
a subsidiary)

Common shareholders

Common shareholders

Common shareholders

Common shareholders

Common shareholders

Common directors

Common directors

Close family member of
director

Directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries

Close family member

of director

During the years, the Group had significant business transactions with related parties, which

have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of

business between the Company and those related parties. Below is a summary of those

transactions.
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Transactions with subsidiaries

(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Revenue from sales
Revenue from services
Revenue from rental and utilities
Other income
Interest income
Dividend income
Purchase of goods

Service expenses

Commission expenses
Advertising expenses

Interest expenses

Transactions with related parties

Revenue from sales and services
Other income

Purchase of goods

Service expenses

Rental and utilities expenses

Interest expenses

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate Transfer pricing
financial statements financial statements Policy
2020 2019 2020 2019
- - 1.2 0.9 Contract price
- - 0.1 0.1 Contract price
- - 1.5 7.0 Contract price
- - 4.0 2.4 Contract price
- - - 0.3 Contract rate
- - 23.7 1.6 Declared rate
= 20.8 36.0 Contract price
- - 3.8 21.8  Contract price
- - 0.2 1.0 Contract price
- 0.2 0.2 Contract price
= A 0.2 0.2 Contract price
5.1 0.5 0.8 0.3 Contract price
0.7 - - - Actual price
5.7 17.9 3.2 156.9 Contract price
4.8 4.3 1.6 2.2 Contract price
12.9 28.2 10.0 24.8 Contract price
0.2 0.2 - - Contract rate

The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 between the Company,

subsidiaries and those related companies are as follows:

Trade receivables - subsidiaries (Note 11)

(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Siam Weliness Resort Co., Ltd.
Siam Wellness Lab Co., Ltd.
Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd.

Tiger Eyes Trading (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Total

N

WMTRWN

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
- - 389 589
= & 2,459 61
- - - 4
- _ 1,963 679
= ) - 4,811 1,333
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019

Trade receivables - related parties (Note 11)
Blooming Co., Ltd. 2,397 135 - -

Cyberprint Group Co., Ltd. 251 175 251 175
B.U. Enterprise Co., Ltd. 5 5 5 -
Sawangsuk Co., Ltd. 1,082 - 39 -
Director of subsidiaries 22 7 - -
Total 3,757 322 295 175

Other receivables - subsidiaries (Note 11)
(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. - - 10 21
Siam Wellness Group (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. - - 255 245
Siam Wellness Group (Cambodia) Co., Ltd - - 230 230

Total - - 495 496
Other receivables - related parties (Note 11)

Klom Kliaoc Pattana Co., Ltd. 300 - 300 -
Directors of the Company 84 - - -
Total 384 - 300 -

Lease receivables - subsidiaries
(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Current - - 160 -
Non-current - - 26,115 -
Total - - 26,275 -

Short-term loans from and interest payable to related parties
Director of the Company 1,143

Director of subsidiaries 3,472 %
Total 4,615 -

Long-term loans from subsidiaries

Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. - - 15,000 -
Siam Wellness Lab Co., Ltd. - £ 10,000 -
Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd. 5 = 5,000 -
Total - - 30,000 -
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Trade payables - subsidiaries (Note 21)
(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. - . 886 114
Siam Weliness Lab Co., Ltd. - - 6,831 3,248
Siam Welliness Education Co., Ltd. - - 2,227 2,025
Tiger Eyes Trading (Thailand) Co., Ltd. - - 438 484
Total - - 10,382 5871
Trade payables - related parties (Note 21)
Blooming Co., Ltd. 277 1,540 82 1,411
Blooming Intergift Co., Ltd. 502 9 502 9
B.U. Enterprise Co., Ltd. 47 105 47 70
Cyberprint Group Co., Ltd. 182 4086 147 387
Asian Fortune Property Co., Ltd. 21 201 20 201
G.G.P. Property Co., Ltd. - 160 - 160
Klom Kliao Pattana Co., Ltd. 18 - = -
Total 1,047 2,421 798 2,238
Payables for purchase of fixed assets - related party (Note 21)
Cyberprint Group Co., Ltd. 6 75 6 75
Total 6 75 6 75
Other payables - a subsidiary (Note 21)
(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statement)
Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. - - 195 =
Total - - 195 -
Other payables - related parties (Note 21)
Directors of the Company 397 148 372 123
Total 397 148 372 123
Accrued expenses - a subsidiary (Note 21)
(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statement)
Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd. - - - 25
Total - - - 25
Lease liabilities - a subsidiary
(Being eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements)
Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd. - - 2,223

Total _ 122
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
Lease liabilities - related parties
Blooming Intergift Co., Ltd. 3,269 - 3,269 <
B.U. Enterprise Co., Ltd. 18,675 - 6,591 =
Asian Fortune Property Co., Ltd. 50,994 - 50,994 -
Klom Kliao Pattana Co., Ltd. 67,247 - 66,320 =
G.G.P. Property Co., Ltd. 3,651 = 3,651 -
Related directors of the Company 10,964 - 10,964 -
Total 154,800 - 141,789 -

Short-term loans from and interest payable to related parties

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balance of long-term loan from and interest payable

between the subsidiary and those related parties and the movement is as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at
31 December During the year 31 December

Lender 2019 Increase Decrease 2020
Directors of the Company 1,143 44 (1,187) -
Director of subsidiaries 3,472 132 (3,604) -
Total 4,616 176 (4,791) -

Short-term loans from and interest payable to related parties are in the form of an unsecured

loan, carrying interest at the rate of 5% per annum and due at call.
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Long-term loans from related parties

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balance of long-term loan from subsidiaries and those
related parties and the movement is as follows:

{(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Interest  Balance as at Balance as at
rate 31 December During the year 31 December

Lender (% p.a) 2019 Increase Decrease 2020
Siam Wellness Resort Co., Ltd. 2.25 - 15,000 - 15,000
Siam Wellness Lab Co., Ltd. 1.52 - 10,000 - 10,000
Siam Wellness Education Co., Ltd. 2.25 - 5,000 - 5,000
Total - 30,000 - 30,000

The outstanding balance as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 of long-term loans from
subsidiaries are in the form of an unsecured loans due within 5 years from the date of signing

the contracts.

Directors and management’s benefits

During the years 2020 and 2019, employee benefit expense payable to their directors and

management of the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits 7.4 19.4 7.4 19.4
Post-employment benefits 0.6 1.4 0.6 14
Total 8.0 20.8 8.0 20.8

Guarantee obligations with related parties

The Company has guarantee obligations to subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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9. Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash 2,129 5,820 1,975 5,397
Bank deposits 112,397 46,741 89,158 39,220
Total 114,526 52,561 91,133 44,617

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits in saving accounts carried interests between 0.05

and 0.70 percent per annum (2019: between 0.50 and 0.70 percent per annum).

10. Current investments
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2020

Consolidated Separate
financial statement financial statement

Investment measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Unit trusts 4 1
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2019

Consolidated Separate
financial statement  financial statement

Trading securities

Unit trusts 72,898 15,344
Add: Unrealised gain on the change in

fair value of investments 200 48
Unit trusts - net 73,098 15,392
Total current investments 73,098 15,392

Investment in unit trusts were measured at fair value using by level 2.

Outstanding balance of investments in unit trusts as at 31 December 2019 are unit trusts of
General Fixed Income Fund which a fund management company announced the termination
of fund on 27 March 2020 and the liquidation period on July 2020. Therefore, a fund
management company has received approval for a 90 days extension of the liquidation period
until October 2020.

trusts holders that already recgiyed in full amount.
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11. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables - related parties (Note 7)

Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due
Past due
Up to 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
Total trade receivables - related parties, net

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due
Past due
Up to 3 months
3 - 6 months
6- 12months
Over 12 months
Total
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(2019: Allowance for doubtful debts)
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net
Total trade receivable - net
Other receivables
Other receivables - related parties (Note 7)
Other receivables - unrelated parties
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(2019: Allowance for doubtful debts)
Total other receivables, net

Total trade and other receivables - net

Y

Consolidated financial -

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
348 314 3,747 1,232
1,021 7 1,320 239
2,388 1 2 -
- - 37 37
3,757 322 5,106 1,508
4,891 3,463 4,325 2,125
5,276 26,740 4,869 25,521
705 1,409 486 1,231
1,693 2,724 1,678 2,680
4,525 2,566 4,225 2,411
17,090 36,902 15,583 33,968
(1,154) (1,093) (844) (947)
15,936 35,809 14,739 33,021
19,693 36,131 19,845 34,529
384 - 795 496
1,934 1,318 1,469 1,183
(236) (236) (236) (236)
2,082 1,082 2,028 1,443
21,775 37,213 21,873 35,972
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12.

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade and other

receivables.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statement statement
As at 1 January 2020 1,489 1,343
Provision for expected credit losses 1,477 565
Amount recovered (1,576) (828)
As at 31 December 2020 1,390 1,080

Share return receivables / Discontinued operation

On 17 December 2018, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 7/2018 passed
the resolutions approving the acquisition of 349,600 ordinary shares of Chaba Elegance
Co., Ltd. which principally engaged in nails polish, hand and foot spa, and eyelash extension
business, or 76% of total share capital, in order to beneficially expand the Company’s current
business. This investment acquisition was approximately amounting to Baht 125 million. The
Company made partial payment for the shares totalling Baht 93.75 million on 3 January 2019,
5 February 2019, and 2 May 2019. The Company had the remaining amount of the shares
totaling Baht 31.25 million. The Company received shares of Chaba Elegance Co., Ltd. from

the former shareholders on 1 January 2019.

Later, on 4 October 2019, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 7/2019
passed a resolution approving the cancellation of investment in Chaba Eiegance Co., Ltd.
since such business needs a high expertise and competency level, resuiting in the slowing
down of the business expansion which does not follow the Company’'s objective. The
Company entered into the separation agreement for the investment in Chaba Elegance Co.,
Ltd. with the former shareholders on 6 October 2019.

Under the separation agreement, the former shareholders agreed to cancel the remaining
amount of shares totaling Baht 31.25 million that the Company has not yet paid according to
the share purchase agreement and the former shareholders agreed to return the Company
amount of Baht 93.75 million that the former shareholders received to the Company in 8
installments i.e., within 2019 totaling Baht 43.75 million, within 2020 totaling Baht 35 million,
and within 2021 totaling 15 million. The former shareholders agreed to pay the Company with
8 advance dated checks \Wjth amounts and( t due dates specified in the separation
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As at 31 December 2020, the Company cannot draw the money from the cheque which was
due on 30 June 2020, 30 September 2020, and 31 December 2020. The management of the
Company has followed up and filed a lawsuit against the former shareholders for these two
cheques that cannot be drawn on August 2020, October 2020, and January 2021,
respectively. The former shareholders informed that they are in the process of arranging their
assets and following procedures in order to pay for such amounts due to the Company. The
management of the Company considers that the former shareholders have an ability to pay
for such share returns to the Company in full amount. The Company expected to be received
within one year amounting to Baht 9.5 million.

The movement of share return receivables from the former shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2020 are as detailed below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and Separate
financial statements

Share return receivables as at 1 January 2020 54,200
Cumulative effect from the financial reporting

standards related to financial instruments (517)
Net book value as at 1 January 2020 - as restated 53,683
Decrease from fair value change during the period (2,434)
Received during the year (9,200)
Share return receivables as at 31 December 2020 42,049
Less: Current portion (9,462)
Share return receivables - net of current portion 32,587

Details of discontinued operation as presented in the statement of comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 December 2019 are summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated
financial statement

Discontinued operation

Revenues 46,500
Expenses (41,791)
Profit before income tax expenses 4,709
Income tax expenses (573)

4,136
Loss from disposal of investment in_a subsidiary (492)

Profit from discontinued operation t of income tax ex ses) 3,644
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Cash flows from (used in) discontinued operation

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities

13. Inventories

Finished goods

Service materials and
supplies

Food and beverage

Products during
packaging and packages

Total

Finished goods
Service materials and
supplies
Food and beverage
Products during
packaging and packages
Total

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated
financial statement
7,900
(8,090)
(190)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Reduce cost to

Cost net realisable value Inventories - net
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
21,507 16,412 (2,994) (1,146) 18,513 15,266
23,062 23,246 (2,199) (382) 20,863 22,864
414 562 3) 4) 411 558
696 1,362 (185) (149) 511 1,213
45,679 41,582 (5,381) (1,681) 40,298 39,901
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements
Reduce cost to
Cost net realisable value Inventories - net
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
15,875 12,447 (1,888) (113) 13,987 12,334
24,863 24,851 (2,178) (377) 22,685 24,474
11 14 3) 4) 8 10
3 530 - - 3 530
40,752 37,842 (4,0869) (494) 36,683 37,348

During the current year, the Group reduced cost of inventories by Baht 4.3 million (2019: Baht

0.5 million) (The Company only: Baht 3.9 million (2019: Baht 0.3 million)), to reflect the net

realisable value. This was included in cost of sales. In addition, the Group reversed the write-

down of cost of inventories by Baht 0.6 million (2019: Baht 0.8 million) (The Company only:

Baht 0.3 million (2019: Baht 0.

as expenses during the year.
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14. Restricted deposits at financial institution

These represent the fixed deposit of a subsidiary pledged with a financial institution to secure
bank overdrafts from financial institution of another subsidiary as disclosed in Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

15. Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in the separate financial statements as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Country (Unit: Thousand Baht)
of Called-up Shareholding Dividend received
Company's name incorporation share capital percentage Cost during the year
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(%) (%)
Siam Wellness Lab Thailand 1,000 1,000 99.99 99.99 2,000 2,000 8,100 -
Co, Ltd
Siam Wellness Education Thailand 1,000 1.000 99.97 99.97 1,000 1,000 6,000
Co, Lid
Siam Wellness Resorl Thailand 60,000 60,000 99.99 99.99 98,705 98,705 9.600
Co,, Ltd
Siam Waeliness Group Hong Kong 1 1 100.00 100.00
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong (Hong Kong
Dollar} Dollar)
Siam Wellness Group Cambodia - - 100.00 100.00
{Cambodia) Co,, Ltd. -
Total 101,705 101,705 23,700

16. Leasehold rights

The reconciliation of leasehold rights for the year ended 31 December 2019 is presented

below.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and
Separate financial
statements
Net book value as at 1 January 2020 9,265
Effect from the adoption of TFRS 16 (9,265)
Net book value as at 1 January 2020 - restated -

\
ArdHY N
o

42

=
e Ayt LN i

= s i PR
AN \hi_LIHiS_:. GAHCIUF



17. Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Revaluation
basis Cost basis
Assets
under
Buildings and  Furniture, installation
Land building fixtures and Motor and under
Land improvements  improvements  equipment vehicles construction Total
Cost/Revalued amount:
1 January 2019 278,766 2,684 1,019,306 156,716 19,174 23,075 1,499,721
Additions - - 382 30,990 849 130,707 162,928
Disposals/Write-off - - (898) (1,967) (42) - (2,907)
Transfer to non-current
assets classified as held
for sale - - (38,782) - . a (38,782)
Transfer in (out) - - 132,716 - - (132,716) -
31 December 2019 278,766 2,684 1,112,724 185,739 19,981 21,066 1,620,960
Effect from the adoption
of TFRS 16 - - (2,380) (582) - - (2,962)
Additions - - 14,331 19,978 459 92,489 127,257
DisposalsA\rite-off - - (36,246) (4,245) - - (40,491)
Transfer in (out) - - 102,969 1,260 - (104,229) -
31 December 2020 278,766 2,684 1,191,398 202,150 20,440 9,326 1,704,764
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2019 - 2,684 324,229 94,414 11,303 - 432,630
Depreciation for the year - - 89,356 22,056 2,502 - 113,914
Depreciation on disposals/
write-off - - (500) (1,352) (42) - (1,894)
Depreciation for transferring
to non-current assets
classified as held for sale - - (6,487) - - - (6,487)
31 December 2019 - 2,684 406,598 115,118 13,763 - 538,163
Effect from the adoption
of TFRS 16 - - (1,148) (215) - - (1,363)
Depreciation for the year - - 99,627 24,460 2,517 - 126,604
Depreciation on disposals/
write-off - . (30,701) (2,886) - - (33,587)
31 December 2020 - 2,684 474,376 136,477 16,280 - 629,817
Allowance for impairment loss
1January 2019 - = = = - - -
31 December 2019 - - - - - - -
Increase during the year - n 346 9 4 - 359
31 Decembar 2020 - O 3y n 4 g 350
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

Net book value:
31 December 2019

31 December 2020

Revaluation
Cost basis
Assets
under
Buildings and Furniture, installation
Land building fixtures and Motor and under
improvements  improvements  equipment vehicles construction Total
278,766 - 706,126 70,621 6,218 21,066 1,082,797
278,766 - 716,676 65,664 4,156 9,326 1,074,588

Depreciation for the year

2019 (Baht 107.2 million included in cost of sales and cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 113,914

2020 (Baht 120.1 million included in cost of sales and cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 126,604

Cost/Revalued amount:

1 January 2019

Additions

Disposals/\Write-off

Transfer to non-current assets
classified as held for sale

Transfer in (out)

31 December 2019

Effect from the adoption of TFRS 16

Additions

Disposals/write-off

Transfer in (out)

31 December 2020

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Revaluation
basis Cost basis
Buildings and Furniture, Assets under
building fixtures and installation and
Land improvements equipment  Motor vehicles  under construction Total
278,766 871,550 132,497 16,964 23,075 1,322,852
- 381 30,193 849 129,540 160,963
- (790) (1,640) (42) - (2,472)
3 (38,782) . . . (38,782)
- 131,549 B - (131,549) -
278,766 963,908 161,050 17,771 21,066 1,442,561
- (2,317) (582) - - (2,899)
- 8,575 16,749 459 80,562 116,345
B (32,212) (2,688) - - (34,900)
- 101,042 1,260 - (102,302) -
278,766 1,038,996 175,789 18,230 9,326 1,521,107
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Revaluation
basis Cost basis
Buildings and Furniture, Assets under
building fixtures and installation and
Land improvements equipment  Motor vehicles  under construction Total
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2019 - 256,225 75,106 10,391 - 341,722
Depreciation for the year - 81,999 20,209 2,161 - 104,369
Depreciation on disposals/write-off - (394) (1,028) (42) - (1,464)
Depreciation for transferring to non-
current assets classified as held for
sale
Depreciation on disposals/write-off - (6,487) - - - (6,487)
31 December 2019 - 331,343 94,287 12,510 - 438,140
Effect from the adoption of TFRS 16 - (1,133) (215) - - (1,348)
Depreciation for the year - 92,108 22,691 2,175 - 116,974
Depreciation on disposals/write-off - (26,702) (1,922) - - (28,624)
31 December 2020 - 395,616 114,841 14,685 - 525,142
Allowance for impairment loss
1 January 2019 2 - - - - -
31 December 2019 - - - - - -
Increase during the year = 346 9 4 - 359
31 December 2020 - 346 9 4 - 359
Net book value:
31 December 2019 278,766 632,565 66,763 5,261 21,066 1,004,421
31 December 2020 278,766 643,034 60,939 3,541 9,326 995,606

Depreciation for the year
2019 (Baht 97.9 million included in cost of sales and cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 104,369

2020 (Baht 110.6 million included in cost of sales and cost of services, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 116,974

On 29 October 2019, the Meeting of Executive Committee has the resolution to approve the
Company to sell its condominium unit. On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the
sales and purchase agreement of condominium unit with a non-related person with the
amount of Baht 36.5 million. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Company received the deposit amounted Baht 1.8 million and Baht 0.2 million, respectively.
According to the agreement, the buyer shall pay for the remaining amount of Baht 34.5 million
within 31 December 2020. However, on 16 January 2021, the Company entered into the
memorandum of the agreement with the buyer to postpone the settlement for the remaining
amount to be within 1 July 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic situation. As at 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Company classified such condominium unit with its net book value of Baht
32.3 million as "Non-current assets glassified as held for sale” under current assets in the

consolidated and separate statemen{ ¢f financial positi ‘,”’
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The Company arranged for an independent professional value to appraise the value of land
in 2018. Land was revalued using the comparable market approach for the basis of the
revaluation.

Had the lands carried in the financial statements on a historical cost basis, their net book value
as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 would have been as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

financial statements
2020 2019
Land 165,557 165,557

A breakdown of the land carried on a revaluation basis is as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and Separate

financial statements

2020 2019
Original costs 165,557 165,557
Surplus from revaluations 113,209 113,209
Revalued amount 278,766 278,766

As at 31 December 2019, certain items of building and building improvements, furniture,
fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles were fully depreciated but are still in use. The gross
carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to
approximately Baht 206 million (2018: Baht 178 million) (The Company only: Baht 142 million
(2018: Baht 112 million)).

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has pledged its land and structures thereon
amounting to Baht 264 million (2018: Baht 243 million) as collateral against its bank overdrafts
facilities and long-term loans facilities as disclosed in Note 20 and Note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

During the year 2020, the Company recognises an impairment loss for property, plant and
equipment amounting to Baht 0.4 million (2019: Nil) to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets to their recoverable amounts. This is because the COVID-19 pandemic situation that
significantly impact the business operations that led to the recognition of the impairment loss.
The Company has determined the recoverable amounts of its assets based on value in use
using cash flow projections from ﬁn@:ial estimation ap;@ved by management.
&
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18.

Key assumption used in value in use calculation is discount rate for which 2020 using at the
rate of 8.0% (2019: 7.7%). The sensitivity analysis of impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets for 2020 increased of Baht 1.6 million for the increasing of
0.1% of discount rate.

Goodwill

A reconciliation of net book value of goodwill for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 is presented below.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements  financial statements

Net book value as at 1 January 2019 24,536 20,340
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 24,536 20,340
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 24,536 20,340

The Company allocated goodwill acquired in business combination to group of cash

generating units for the purpose of impairment testing as follows.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

Spa services business  Spa services and sale

under “Baan Suan of spa products
Massage” brand business Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Goodwill 20,340 20,340 4,196 4,196 24,536 24,536

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Spa services business under
“Baan Suan Massage” brand
2020 2019
Goodwill 20,340 20,340

The Company estimates the recoverable amount of group of cash-generating units from value
in use. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are referred from financial

estimation with significant assumptions using in relating to revenue growth rate and discount

rate approved by the management.|The discount rate for this year was 8.0% (2019:
7.7%).
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Intangible assets
The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is presented below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Computer Computer
Licenses software Trademark Total Licenses software Trademark Total
As at 31 December 2020:
Cost 9,943 1,804 4,780 16,527 9,194 1,676 4,780 15,650
Less: Accumulated amortisation (4,294) (602) (2,545) (7,441) (3.570) (559) (2,545) (6.,674)
5,649 1,202 2,235 9,086 5624 1,117 2,235 8,976

Net book value

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statemants
Computer Computer
Licenses software Trademark Total Licenses software Trademark Total
As at 31 December 2019:
Cost 8,122 1,985 4,697 14,804 8,020 1,178 4,697 13,895
Less: Accumulated amortisation (2,548) (1,051) (2,066) (5,665) (2,528) (348) (2,068) (4.942)
5,574 934 2,631 9,139 5,492 830 2,631 8,953

Net book value

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2020 and 2019 is

presented below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Net book value at beginning of year 9,139 8,963 8,953 8,772
Acquisition during the year 1,788 1,820 1,788 1,773
Write-off during the year (40) - (9) -
Amortisation (1,801) (1,644) (1,7586) (1,592)
Net book value at end of year 9,086 9,139 8,976 8,953
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20.

21.

Bank overdrafts from financial institutions

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements
2020 2019

Bank overdrafts from financial institution - 32

Bank overdrafts of a subsidiary has interest at the MOR per annum and MLR plus 1.5% per
annum (2019: MLR plus 1.5% per annum) which are secured by fixed deposit of another
subsidiary as disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and by the lands
and structures thereon of the Company as the collateral as disclosed in Note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Trade and other payables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Trade accounts payable - unrelated parties 21,625 21,755 19,300 17,517
Trade accounts payable - related parties

(Note 7) 1,047 2,421 11,180 8,109
Payables for purchase of fixed assets - unrelated

parties 188 1,176 188 954
Payables for purchase of fixed assets - related

parties (Note 7) 6 75 6 75
Payables for construction and retention 8,044 25,606 7,791 25,010
Other payables - unrelated parties 2,013 2,131 1,878 1,995
Other payables - related parties

(Note 7) 397 148 567 123
Accrued payroll and bonus expenses 3,432 22,367 3,348 21,698
Accrued rental expenses - 12,362 - 12,219
Other accrued expenses - unrelated parties 7,910 8,677 6,904 7,304
Other accrued expenses - related parties

(Note 7) - - - 25
Total trade and other payables 44 662 96,718 51,162 95,029

e~ q A
QN ’\Q/\QJJ(\) JI\\G‘f’i"J\ S1AMm
< WELLNESS 49
Lk O o)

-
USun RORLANTY 9950 cumyy
BAM W gg GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



~0

0a QNN ANV QRN eCol/ o, 7...2..RJ
LLUro wuLs 1 7 N ®
SRR T
WS, Y T
P Aenigay
uj 8q |IM sjsala)ul pue
a|diound jo JuswiAeds:
Ise| 8yl "1zog ‘ez0g Aenuep
yaJe ul papsadold ul 8g |im syss1eiul pue a(diound jo
3q ||Im Juawhedsl JuswAedal 1s€| 8y “Lpuow 49 Jo Aep
1S1Y SY} YIM ‘Spremuo $S3UISNQ )SE) BY) SOUIS S| JusLAedal
0202 Ydiely aouis 9|didund 31y BU YoJyM ‘Umopmelp 22 - YN spiemuo
uopIpuod Juswieds: 1S3l 3y} 9ouls spouad Gg LyIM 1esh pig pue
00€'05 009'Ly 00£'05 009'Ly a(diound sy pasinay 0Z0z Wolen /z sisase)ul pue oidiound jo yuswhedsy - ¥ JBBA puzdsL  2L0Zisnbny Lg
20T yotep
Ut aq ||Im S)saI8)ul pue
a|dioupd jo yuswAeds)
ISe| 8yl 'L2oz
yousepy ur papaasosd "1 20z Joquadaq ul aq |m
3q ||Im JusLiAedal sysalajul pue s|diouud Jo justukedsd
1814 9U) YIm 'spremuc 1se| 8y / 10z Aenuep Jaye spouad
020Z Ydiepy sours 09 ulyym s)sasayul pue sjdiound 2°Z - YN ‘Splemuo
uoRIpuos JuswAedsal 10 JuswAedas pue umopmesp sy Jeaf pig pue
006's9 006'95 006'69 006'95 a|diound sy pasirey 020z Y2Jew /z 8y} souls Yluow Aisad Jsalsiul sy Aed € - YN 1edh puzisy
6102 020z 6102 0zoz juswAedey 8jeg Wswieday (wnuue tad o)
BEIREIET Juawaaibe ueo
sjuaLsiels BSIENTSEN Juswsaaibe ueo| Jo Juswpuswy
|eueuy s)eledsg jelouBLl paleplOSUC)

(yeg puesnoy) Jun)

sueo} wudy-fuoy ‘zz



IMRLAM) WuLs [

G2 DN

sl ANV

AT SSMTIM s
LugrieLanuos Wit

LG l!nﬂa =2
SSAINTIIM A S N ETQl
WV m.wfﬂ.%. )
. b
‘6202 yole ul eq inm
sisasa| pue a(dipuud Jo juswAedas
Ise| 8y 'Zzoz |udy souis spopad g
UM sisasaiu pue ajdpurd oI
Jo JuswiAedal pue umopmelp JSIl Sp1emuo Jeak pig
- - = 000'0L = = 3y} 3ouIs Yuow A1ens jsaisiul sy} Aed pue z .1esh puz-is| 0z0Z udy 6 ol S
'G20Z Yodepy Ul oq jm
sisasaiu pue s(dpuud 4o juswiedal
Ise| dyL 'ZZ0z Iudy souis spoued
9€ Uiyum sisasajun pue sidiound yiw
J0 JuswAedal pue umopmelp 15l :SpJemuo Jeak pig
= 000'0Z = 000'02 = - ay souis Lpuow Alens Jsass)u) ay) Aed pue g .1eah puz-ist 0202 Hdv € (074 4
'GZ0cC JequuanoN
ul aq |{im sjsalasiul pue
ajdiound jo juswieds:
IsE| @y] "020T
19qojoQ Ul papaasold '6Z0Z U2JBiN Ul 8q [Mm
aq |m JuaLiedas s)satojul pue 3|douud jo JuswAeds)
1S1I} Y} YIm ‘Spremuo 1SE| 3y "UMOPMEIP Uoea Jaje spouad £- YN
020z |udy 20uis 09 UM sisasaju; pue sjdpuud 'SPJBMUO JeaA pig
uoIIpuUoD JuswAedss 10 JuawAedal pue umopmelp 1S pue g2 e -y
191'v¥ £199'161 19V'vb 199151 a|dound sy pasiney 020z 43900 92 2y} aouls Yiuwow AIans jsaseju) ayy Aed eaf puz-sy 610z few ze 09l €
6102 0202 6102 0202 juswieday aleg JuswiAeday (wnuue 1ad %) alep -ou
ajes }sassu| Juswaside ueon junowe Aoey ueoq
sjusWale)s SusWaIE)S Juawsalbe UEO| 4O JusuIpuaWY

|epueuy sjeledeg

(iyeg puesnoyy )

{eloueuy pajepliosuo)



(LM SLE [EUETISLITLAY WALN
BRSO
SSANTIEIM

§<_m

MV e

mo

/9108 €18'TLZ

1'08 elLg'/8z

(00z'08) (¥se'ee)
19¢'091 £91'99¢

(00z'08) (rse'sol)
19€'091 291'16€

- 000'29

000'€Z

- 0oo0‘ol

- 000's

~0
y« bﬂ%an. Y Oecix D

b sny

‘umopmelp Ay i

'G20Z JaquianoN Ui aq M sisalajul
pue sidipuid Jo JuswAhedal jse|
8y] '120z foquaoa(g @ouls spouad
gt ulyum sissie)ul pue ajdipuud

Jo Juawdedsl pue umopmelp 1siy

8y} aouIs Yyuow Asaaa jsalaiul auy Aed
¥

G20Z 139000 Ul 8q
ajdioupd yo JuswAedsl jse| syl 1202

s)salsjul pue

J9qUIBAoN 3oUIs spouad g UIyim
siseq Aly)uow sjsaseul pue sjdiouud AN
Jo yusuifedal pue umopmelp sy 'spiemuo Jeaf pig
2y} souls yjuow A1sas Jsalai ay) Aed pue g ueah puz-isi
'GZ0T Udlely Ul 8q M
sjsasu) pue aidiound Jo yuswAedss
ise| 8y "zzoz Idy souls spouad gg
uiypm sisaseu) pue oidiound N
10 JuswAedss pue umopmelp isiy 'spiemuo Jeaf pig
3y} 9oUIs yuow A1ans 1salalul ay) Aed pue z 1eaA puz-is|.
'G20C Yoltely Ut aq jim
s)selssul pue aidouud jo JuswAedal
1se| 9yL "2Z0Z 1udy sduls spowad ge
UM s)salajul pue sidiounud q4m
10 JuswAedas pue umopmelp ishy SpIeMmUO Jeah pig

8y} 80UIS Yluow Aians Isalsjul auy) Aed pue g Jealk puz-isy

uoryod Juand Jo 19U 'sueo| wisy-BuoT

020¢ 12qUIBAON 02

0C0C J19qUISAON 81

0202 1Mdv 14

0Z0Z dv L1

uoipod jualng 'ssa

68

>4

ol

S

lejoL

6L0C (174074

6102 0coc

suifedsy aleq

sjusWale)s
|eioueuy s)eledas

(iyeg puesnoyy 3un)

sjusws)e)s

|efoueul pajepIlosuod

Juswaaibe ueo] JO JusWpuaWwY

wawheday (wnuue Jad %,)

ajel Jsalau|

ajep

Juswsaibe ueo

(ieg uom)
wnowe Ayjoey

ou

ueon



The loan agreement contains several covenants which, among other things, require
the Company and subsidiaries to maintain debt-to-equity ratio (the Company only) and debt

service coverage ratio at the rate prescribed in the agreements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company and two subsidiaries have been unable to maintain
some financial ratios covenants under the loan agreements (unrelated to principle and interest
payment) for loan facilities No. 1 to No. 5 and No. 7 to No. 9 which in December 2020, the
Company and one subsidiary have received waiver letters for not complying with such
covenants from the Bank. As a result, the outstanding balances as at 31 December 2020 of
loan facility No. 1 to No. 5 and No.8 to No.9 are classified as current liabilities according to

the conditions specified in the loan agreements.

However, another subsidiary has received waiver letter for not complying with such covenants
for loan facility No. 7 from the bank on 22 February 2021. As a result, the total outstanding
balances of such loan facility as at 31 December 2020 amounting to Baht 10 million has fuily
presented as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position for the

purpose of reporting under Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

The loan facility No. 1 to No. 3 and No. 8 to No. 9 are secured by the mortgage of land and
structures thereon of the Company as disclosed in the Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the loan facility No. 4 has no collateral, and the loan facility No. 5 to No. 7 which
are long-term loans of its subsidiaries are guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, long-term credit facilities of a Company which have not yet been
drawn down amounted to Baht 31 million (2019: Baht 110 million).
Movements in the long-term loans from financial institution during the year ended

31 December 2020 is summarised below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial financial

statement statement
Balance as at 1 January 2020 160,367 160,367
Add: Increase during the year 245,000 220,000
Less: Repayment (14,200) (14,200)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 391,167 366,167
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23. Leases
23.1 The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, plant, and equipment used in its

operations. Leases generally have lease terms between 2-30 years.
a) Right-of-use assets

Movement of right-of-use assets for the year ended 31 December 2020 are summarised

below:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statement
Machinery and
Land Buildings equipment Total
1 January 2020 96,166 1,083,570 12,553 1,192,289
Additions - 173,387 - 173,387
Effect of modification of
lease agreements - (9,925) = (9,925)
Effect from cancellation
of lease agreement - (3,846) - (3,846)
Depreciation for the year (7,708) (172,034) (2,406) (182,148)
Impairment loss (201) - - (201)
31 December 2020 88,257 1,071,152 10,147 1,169,556

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statement

Machinery and

Land Buildings equipment Total

1 January 2020 72,584 1,068,061 11,756 1,152,401
Additions - 173,387 - 173,387
Effect of modification of

lease agreements - (9,925) = (9,925)
Effect from cancellation

of lease agreement - (3,846) - (3,846)
Depreciation for the year (6,303) (168,957) (2,362) (177,622)
Impairment loss (201) - - (201)
31 December 2020 66,080 1 ,058,720 9,394 1,134,194
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b) Lease liabilities

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate
financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
Lease payments 1,338,526 407 1,327,241 407
Less: Deferred interest expenses (140,675) (27) (140,178) (27)
Total 1,197,851 380 1,187,063 380
Less: Portion due within one year (169,179) (120) (166,176) (120)
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 1,028,672 260 1,020,887 260

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements under the liquidity risk.

c) Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Consolidated Separate
financial statement financial statement
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets 75,961 73,384*
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 12,817* 13,244*
Expenses relating to short-term leases 292 292
Expenses relating to variable lease payments 10,711 10,711
* Net of rental discount during the year.
The Group has lease contracts for office building space that contains variable payments
based on sales or gross profit margins. The lease term is 4 - 15 years.
d) Others

The Group had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
Baht 82 million (The Company only: Baht 84 million), including the cash outflow related to
short-term lease, leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments that do not

depend on an index or a rate.

\

A was Qrr !!:Q;.o
X NS 1AM
WELLNESs

A Lo
Wha {0V SVIRISINIS A
o~

55



23.2 Group as a lessor

The Company entered into lease agreements of land and office spaces with related parties
and also entered into sub-lease agreements for partial leased assets with its subsidiaries. In
2020, the Company had income from such sub-lease agreements with its subsidiaries
amounting to Baht 2 million (2019: Baht 5 million). In case the Company and its subsidiaries
made sub-leasing continuously throughout the lease period of which the Company made
lease agreements with related parties (the lease period was between 12 years to 30 years),
the future minimum received under such sub-leasing as at 31 December 2020 were as

follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)
Within 1 year 3
Over 1 and up to 5 years 13
Over 5 years 52
Total 68
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24. Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to

employees after they retire, was as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Provision for long-term employee benefits at
beginning of year 8,556 14,446 7,683 11,685
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 1,431 3,780 1,239 3,228
Interest cost 137 670 121 545
Past service cost - 260 - 157
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
Financial assumptions changes - (12,3886) - (10,205)
Experience adjustments - 1,786 - 2,273
Provision for long-term employee benefits
at end of year 10,124 8,556 9,043 7,683

Line items in profit or loss under which long-term employee benefit expenses are recognised

are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Cost of sales 13 201 - -
Cost of services 450 1,520 359 1,366
Selling and administrative expenses 1,105 2,989 1,001 2,564
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 1,568 4,710 1,360 3,930

The Company and its subsidiaries expect not to pay long-term employee benefits during the

next year (2019: Baht 0.9 million (The Company only: Baht 0.8 million)).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for
long-term employee benefit is 7 - 25 years (The Company only: 7 - 25 years).
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Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below:

(Unit: Percent per annum)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Discount rate 1.36-2.15 1.36-2.15 1.36 1.36
Salary increase rate 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Turnover rate 13.00 - 57.00 13.00-57.00 13.00-57.00 13.00-57.00

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptionsthat affect the present value of the

long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are summarised

below:
(Unit: million Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5%
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Discount rate (0.2) (0.2) 0.2 0.2 0.2) (0.2) 0.2 0.2
Salary increase rate 0.2 0.2 (0.2) (0.2) 0.2 0.2 (0.2) (0.2)
Turnover rate (0.3) (0.3) 0.3 0.3 (0.3) (0.2) 0.3 0.2

25. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the
registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

According to the Thai Civil and Commercial Code, the subsidiaries are required to set aside
to a statutory reserve an amount equal to at least five percent of its net profit each time the
subsidiaries pay out a dividend, until such reserve reaches ten percent of its registered share
capital. The statutory reserve cannot be used for dividend payment.
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26. Dividends/Share capital

Total
Cash Share amount
Cash dividend Share dividends share
Dividends Approved by dividends per share dividends pay outrate  dividends
(Million (Baht per (Million (Existing (Million
Baht) share) share) share per Baht)
share
dividend)
Final dividends Annual General
for 2018 Meeting of the
Company's
shareholders
on 29 March 2019 85.50 0.15 - - =
Total dividend
for 2019 85.50 0.15 - -
Final dividends Annual General
for 2019 Meeting of the
Company’s
shareholders
on 30 April 2020 17.10 0.03 285 21 71.25
Total dividend
17.10 0.03 285 2:1 71.25

for 2020

On 30 April 2020, the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders passed

a resolution to increase the Company’s registered share capital by Baht 71.25 million, from

the existing registered share capital of Baht 142.50 million to Baht 213.75 million, by issuing

up to 285 million new ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 0.25, to accommaodate the stock

dividend payment.

The Company registered the increase in its registered capital with the Ministry of Commerce
on 12 May 2020. Q
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27.

28.

Reconciliation of share capital

Registered share capital
As of 1 January 2019

As of 31 December2019

Increase in registered ordinary shares
As of 31 December 2020

Issued and paid-up share capital
As of 1 January 2019

As of 31 December 2019

Share dividend paid

As of 31 December 2020

Finance cost

Interest expenses on borrowings
Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Total

Expenses by nature

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
(Shares) (Baht)
570,000,000 142,500,000
570,000,000 142,500,000
285,000,000 71,250,000
855,000,000 213,750,000
570,000,000 142,500,000
570,000,000 142,500,000
284,999,928 71,249,982
854,999,928 213,749,982

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consoclidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
8,364 10,471 7,927 10,136
13,132 15 13,560 15
21,496 10,486 21,487 10,151

Significant expenses classified by nature are as follows:

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate
financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
Changes in inventories (4,097) (8,548) (2,910) (6,678)
Purchases of inventories 52,242 101,342 36,476 108,655
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 126,604 113,914 116,974 104,369
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,801 1,644 1,756 1,592
Amortisation of leasehold rights 2,160 2,069 2,160 2,069
Loss on impairment of assets 560 - 560 -
Employee expenses 214,089 490,817 199,468 482,139
Directors’ remuneration 1,866 2,168 1,866 2,168
Expenses related to lease and service
agreements - net of discount 116,730 210,373 112,821 207,765
Public utilities 20,707 35,227 19,840 34,062
Maintenance and decorate locations expenses 17,389 32,525 17,114 31,835
Advertising and promotion expenses 19,756 29,553 14,991 27,913
Laundry expenses 10,244 37,173 10,244 37,082
Consulting fees ,823 7,402 3,618 3,647
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29.

29.1

29,2

Income tax

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are made up as

follows:

Consolidated financial

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 4,129 46,477 - 43,301
Deferred tax:
Retlating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences (6,213) (1,283) (6,121) (1,438)

Tax income (expenses) from continuing

operations reported in profit or loss (2,084) 45,194 (6,121) 41,863
Current income tax from discontinued operation

(Note 12) = 573 = =
Total current tax income {expenses) (2,084) 45,767 6,121) 41,863

Income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income and

shareholders’ equity

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for

the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
Deferred tax relating to
- Actuarial gain - 2,091 - 1,586
Total - 2,091 - 1,586
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29.3 Reconciliation between accounting profit (loss) and tax income (expenses)

The reconciliation between accounting profit and tax income (expenses) is shown below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Accounting profit (loss) before tax (211,170) 287,527 (185,949) 259,374
Applicable tax rate 0%, 15%, 20% 0%, 15%, 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit (loss) before tax
multiplied by income tax rate (35,129) 56,705 (37,190) 51,875
Effects of:
Tax loss carry forward for the
last period which utilised in the
current year - (5623) - -
Exempt dividend income (4,740) - (4,740) -
Non-deductible expenses 140 490 134 136
Additional expenses deductions
allowed (10,826) (11,478) (10,011) (10,148)
Total (15,426) (11,511) (14,617) (10,012)
Unused tax losses that may not be
sufficient to allow utilisation 48,471 - 45,866 -
Tax income (expenses) reported
in profit or loss (2,084) 45194 (6,121) 41,863
Current income tax from
discontinued operation
(Note 12) - 573 - .
Total current tax income (expenses) (2,084) 45 767 (6,121) 41,863
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29.4 Deferred tax assets / liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for expected credit losses
(2019: Allowance for doubtful accounts) 278 266 216 237
Allowance for diminution in value
of inventories 1,413 691 814 99
Provision for long-term employee benefits 1,975 1,680 1,809 1,536
Lease agreements 6,909 2,442 6,914 2,449
Interest and depreciation from
decommissioning estimation 544 450 544 450
Allowance for impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 72 - 72
Allowance for impairment loss on
right-of-use assets 40 - 40 -
Allowance for expected credit losses
- Share return receivables 487 = 487 -
Total 11,718 5,529 10,896 4,771
Deferred tax liabilities
Surplus on revaluation of land 22,642 22,642 22,642 22,642
Rental revenue on the straight-line = - 2 4
method
Unrealised gain from revaluation
of trading investments - 40 - 10
Deferred sales and marketing revenues - 120 - 120
Total 22,642 22,302 22,644 22,776
820 722 - =

Deferred tax assets - net
Deferred tax liabilities - net 11,744 17,995 11,748 18,005
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses totaling Baht 49 million (The Company only: Baht 46 million), on which deferred tax
assets have not been recognised as the Group considers there is an uncertainty for the
sufficiency of future taxable profits to allow utilisation of the temporary differences and unused

tax losses.

The unused tax losses amounting to Baht 49 million (the Company only: Baht 46 million) will
expire in 2025.

30. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, after adjusting the number of ordinary
shares in proportion to the change in the number of shares as a result of the distribution of
the stock dividend in accordance with the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company's shareholders held on 30 April 2020, as disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements. The number of ordinary shares of the prior year used for the calculation,
as presented for comparative purposes, has been adjusted in proportion to the change in the
number of shares, as if the shares comprising such stock dividends had been issued at the

beginning of the earliest period reported.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per share:

Consolidated financial statements

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

Profit (loss) for the year

(Thousand Baht) (209,085) 242,329 - 3,140 (209,085) 245,469
Weighted average number of

ordinary share (Thousand shares) 855,000 855,000 855,000 855,000 855,000
Profit (loss) per share (Baht/share) (0.245) 0.283 - 0.004 (0.245) 0.287

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

2020 2019
(Restated)
Profit (loss) for the year (Thousand Baht) (179,828) 217,511
Weighted average number of ordinary share (Thous@ shares) 855,000 855,000
Profit (loss) per share (Baht/share) 4/’\ q Q\ (0.210) 0.254
- 64
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31.

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions
about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The chief
operating decision maker has been identified as the Company’s Board of Directors.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products
and services and have three reportable segments as follows:

- Spa services, which operates day spaand destination spa. Also, provides spa
management and spa consultancy services.

- Sales of spa products and healthy products, which distributes natural spa products both
and spa equipment for domestic and international market.

- Hotel and restaurant, which operates boutique resort and restaurant.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing
performance. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and total
assets and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss and total

assets in the financial statements.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with
that for third party transactions.
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The following tables present revenue and profit information regarding the Group’s operating
segments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Sales of spa
products and Hotel and
Spa services healthy products restaurant Elimination Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues from external
Customers 349 1,263 61 70 17 51 - - 427 1,384
Internal - segment revenues 3 21 23 37 . 1 (26) (59) - =
Total revenues 352 1,284 84 107 17 52 (26) (59) 427 1,384
Segment profit (loss) (113) 381 36 42 3) 18 - - (80) 441
Revenues and expenses which have not been allocated:
Interest income 2 -
Other income 6 19
Selling and distribution expenses (34) (52)
Administrative expenses B84) (110)
Finance cost (21) (11)
Profit (loss) before tax income (expenses) (211) 287
Tax income (expenses) 2 (45)
Profit (loss) for the year of continuing operations (209) 242
Profit for the year of discontinued operation - 4
Total profit (loss) for the year (209) 246
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Contract assets / Contract liabilities

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Contract assets
Trade receivables - net 19,693 36,131 19,845 34,529
Total contract assets - net 19,693 36,131 19,845 34,529
Contract liabilities
Advance received - current portion 38,978 28,922 38,187 27,740
Advance received - net of current portion 9,759 12,162 9,759 12,162
Total contract liabilities 48,737 41,084. 47,946 39,902

Disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Timing of revenue recognition:
Revenue recognised at a point in time
Sale 68,604 90,320 21,427 61,048
Services
Spa Service 341,865 1,251,955 341,905 1,250,952
Hotel and restaurant 9,770 30,900 - -
Revenue recognised over time
Franchise income 6,673 10,512 6,673 10,512
Management Fee 842 - 3,987 2,373

Total revenue from contracts with customers 427,754 1,383,687 373,992 1,264,885

Revenue to be recognised for the remaining performance obligations

As at 31 December 2020, revenue totaling Baht 10 million (2019: Baht 12 million) is expected
to be recognised in the future in respect of performance obligations under contracts with
customers that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) The Group expects to satisfy these

performance obligations within 3-5 years.

The above information does not include revenue to be recognised for the unsatisfied portions
of performance obligations related to contracts with a duration of one year or less and where

the revenue is recognised in the a nt that the entity hQa right to invoice,
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The segment assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)

Spa services and
sales of spa

products and healthy

products* Hotel and restaurant Elimination Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Property, plant and equipment 1,003 1,015 71 68 - - 1,074 1,083
Right-of-use assets 1,149 - 23 - 2) - 1,170
Lease receivables 26 - - - (26) - - -
O EReETs 422 409 25 39 (59) (15) 388 433
Total assets 2,600 1,424 119 107 (87) (15) 2,632 1,516

Other material non-cash item:
Write-off of property, plant and

equipment (®) (1 - - 5 - (6) N
Depreciation of property, pant

and equipment and right-of-

use assets (197) (111) (7 (7) - - (204) (118)
Loss on impairment (1) = = = e = (1) -

* Spa services business had jointly used of assets with sales of spa products and health product business.

Geographic information

The Group operates mainly in Thailand. As a result, all the revenues and assets as reflected
in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable segment.

Major Customer

For the years 2020 and 2019, the Group has no major customer with revenue of 10 percent
or more of an entity’s revenues.

32. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with
the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contributes to the fund
monthly at the rate of 3 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by SCB Asset
Management Company Limited., will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance

with the fund rules.

During the years 2020 and 2019, tf'@ontributions to tp@\fund which were recognised as

expenses are as follows:
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

financial statements
2020 2019

Contributions to provident fund 1.3 1.6

33. Commitments and contingent liabilities
33.1 Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has the outstanding commitments for
construction, which the contracts have already been signed. These are summarised as

follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated and Separate
financial statements
2020 2019
Construction costs 4 12

33.2 Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has future minimum payments under service
agreement, short-term lease agreements and low-value assets lease agreement other than

recorded as lease liabilities in the statements of financial position as follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December 2020

Consolidated and Separate
financial statements

Payable:
Inup to 1 year 27
In over 1 and up to 5 years 47
In over 5 years 22

33.3 Letters of guarantees

As at 31 December 2020, there were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 2 million (2019:
Baht 2 million) (The Company only: Baht 2 million (2019: Baht 2 million)) issued by the

banks on behalf of the Group as required Inlthe normal course Lisiness,
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34. Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had the assets that were measured at fair

value using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2020

Consolidated financial statements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value
Lands - 279 - 279
Liabilities disclosed fair value
Loans from financial institution
- fixed interest rates - 64 - 64

(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2020

Separate financial statements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value
Lands - 279 - 279
Liabilities disclosed fair value
Loans from financial institution
- fixed interest rates - 40 - 40

(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2019

Consolidated financial statements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value
Trading securities
Current investments - Unit trusts - 73 - 73
Lands - 279 - 279
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35.
35.1

(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2019

Separate financial statements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value
Trading securities
Current investments - unit trusts - 15 - 15
Lands - 279 - 279

Valuation techniques and inputs to Level 2 valuation

The fair value of investment in unit trusts has been determined by using the net asset values
of the last working day of the reporting period as announced by the asset management

company.

The fair value of lands was revalued using the comparable market approach appraised by an

independent professional valuer.

During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Group's financial instruments, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, current
investments, trade and other receivables, share return receivables, long-term loan to related
party, restricted deposits of financial institution, bank overdrafts from financial institution, short-
term loans from related parties, trade and other payables, liabilities under finance lease
agreements, and long-term loans. The financial risks associated with these financial
instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to deposit at financial institutions
trade and other receivables, share return receivables, and long-term loan to related party. The
Group manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and
therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Group does not
have high concentrations of credit risk since their businesses are sales and services to minor
customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of deposit
at financial institutions, trade and other receivables, share return receivables and long-term
loan to a related party as stated in Qe statements of finapgial position.

L/]’\/\./\.( q

T o STAM 71
NI ’\0/\03)10@?6\( WHELLNESS

WHmann s fUIARBNAMIED

S Bhps WELINESS GROUP PUBUC COMPANY LIMITER



Trade receivables

Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar credit risks. The Group classifies customer segments by customer type and does
not hold collateral as security. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.
Cash deposits

The credit risk on debt instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to their deposit at financial
institutions, restricted deposits of financial institution, long-term loan to related party, bank
overdrafts from financial institution, short-term loans from related parties, long-term loans, and
liabilities under finance lease agreements. Most of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type
of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities
that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date
if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statement

31 December 2020

Fixed interest rates

Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest
At call 1 year years 5years interest rate bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent - - - - 110 4 114 0.05-0.70
Trade and other receivables - - - - = 22 22 =
Share return receivables - - - = = 42 42
Restricted deposits of financial
institution 5 5 - - - 5 1.05
5 o - 110 68 183
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Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Trade and other receivables
Lease receivables

Share return receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Long-term loans from related
parties

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Consolidated financial statement

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December 2020

Fixed interest rates

Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest
At call 1 year years Syears interestrate bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annumy)
= - > = = 45 45 =
: 169 682 347 : : 1,198  2.60-3.38
10 - 58 - 323 - 391 Note 22
10 169 740 347 323 45 1,634
(Unit: Million Baht)
Separate financial statement
31 December 2020
Fixed interest rates
Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest
At call 1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
= % = - 89 2 91 0.05-0.70
s 5 = - - 22 22 -
. - 2 24 - - 26 10-19
S = = - - 42 42 .
- - 2 24 89 66 181
= L E 2 . 51 51
= . 30 - = = 30 1.52-2.25
- 166 674 347 - - 1,187 2.60-3.38
- o - - 366 - 366 Note 22
- 166 704 347 366 51 1,634
9 X
WELLNES>
\)J-(J:\J >Ql\"))l\)h‘?"c\( 24] dafin Y-
S i ApLVTAWANT
AN WELLNESS



Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Current investments

Trade and other receivables
Share return receivables
Restricted deposits of financial

institution

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from and
interest payable to related

parties
Trade and other payables

Long-term loans

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Share return receivables

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Long-term loans

Consolidated financial statement

(Unit: Miflion Baht)

31 December 2019

Fixed interest rates

Non-
1-5 Over Floating interest
At call years 5years interest rate bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
- - - 46 7 53 0.05-0.70
- - . = 73 73 -
- - - - 37 37 -
- - - - 54 54 -
- - - - - 5 1.05
- - - 46 171 222
5 . = = < 5 Note 7
- " = - 97 97 =
- E - 160 - 160 Note 22
5 B - 160 97 262
(Unit: Million Baht)
Separate financial statement
31 December 2019
Fixed interest rates
Non-
1-5 Over Floating interest
At call years 5 years interest rate bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
e = = 39 6 45 0.05-0.70
. - i = 15 15 -
. - = 2 36 36 -
- = = - 54 54 =
- - - 39 111 150
- & = - 95 95 =
= - - 160 - 160 Note 22

ﬂ - 160
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates on that portion of market rate affected as at 31 December

2020 with all other variables held constant.

Consolidated and Consolidated Separate
Separate financial financial financial
statements statement statement
Currency Increase/decrease Effect on profit before tax
(%) (Million Baht) (Million Baht)
Baht 0.5 (2.4) (2.3)
(0.5) 2.4 2.3

The above analysis has been prepared assuming that the amounts loans from and all other
variables remain constant over one year. Moreover, the floating legs of these loans are
assumed to not yet have set interest rates. As a result, a change in interest rates affects
interest payable for the full 12-month period of the sensitivity calculation. This information is
not a forecast or prediction of future market conditions and should be used with care.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk arises from deposit at overseas banks,
purchase and service transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
does not expect to incur material losses from the exchange rates as their businesses are sales
and services to minor customers. The Group had no forward contracts outstanding balance

as at the end of reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies are summarised below.

Consolidated financial statements

Foreign currencies Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Thousand) (Thousand) (Thousand) (Thousand) (Baht per 1 foreign

currency unit)

US Dollar 7 1 - - 30.04 30.15
Hong Keng Dollar 706 675 - - 3.88 3.87
Euro - - 3 19 36.88 33.73
Pound sterling } - 4 - 40.64 39.52
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Separate financial statements

Foreign currencies Financial assets Average exchange rate
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Thousand) (Thousand) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US Dollar - 1 - 30.15
Hong Kong Dollar 706 675 706 3.87
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors the risk of a shortage of liquidity through the use of bank overdrafts, bank
loans and lease contracts. Approximately 19 % of the Group’s debt will mature in less than
one year at 31 December 2020 (2019: 69%) (the Company only: 19%, 2019: 69%) based on
the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The Group has assessed
the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and the Group’s operating, the
Group concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of sources of

funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities instruments as at 31 December 2020 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statement

On Less than 1t05 Over
demand 1 year years 5years Total
Trade and other payables 5 45 B - 45
L ease liabilities - 169 682 347 1,198
Interest on lease liabilities - 32 77 32 141
Long-term loans 10 93 288 - 391
Interest on long-term loans 7 10 15 - 25
Total 10 349 1,062 379 1,800
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statement

On Less than 1t05 Over
demand 1 year years Syears Total
Trade and other payables - 51 - - 51
Lease liabilities - 166 674 347 1,187
Interest on lease liabilities - 32 76 32 140
Long-term loans - 93 273 - 366
Interest on long-term loans - 10 14 - 24
Long-term loans - related parties - . 30 - 30
Interest on long-term loans

- related parties z 1 3 - 4
Total - 3583 1,070 379 1,802

35.2 Fair values of financial instruments

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of financial

instruments are as follows:

a) For financial assets and liabilities which have short-term maturity, including cash and
deposit at financial institutions, trade and other receivables, bank overdrafts from financial
institution, and trade and other payables, their carrying amounts in the statements of

financial position approximate their fair values.
b) For current investments, their fair values are generally derived from quoted market prices.

c) For share return receivables, their carrying amounts in the statements of financial position

approximates their fair values.

d) Future cash flow by the current market interest rate of the loans with similar terms and
conditions. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, fixed rate long-term loans are detailed
below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Long-term loans from financial

institutions - fixed interest rate 68 - 64 - 43 - 40 -

e) Forlong-term loan carrying interest approximate to the market rate, their carrying amounts
in the statements of financial pos approximates t

/lwq

fair values.
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36.

37.

During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that they have
appropriate capital structure in order to support their businesses and maximise shareholder
value. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 1.91:1 (2019: 0.34:1)
and the Company's was 1.94:1 (2019: 0.34:1).

Reclassification

Except the reclassification as a result from the adoption of new accounting standards as
disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has reclassified certain
accounts in the financial statements for year ended 31 December 2019 to conform to the

current year’s classification, as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statement

As previously

As reclassified Reported
Statement of comprehensive income
Revenues
Interest income 735 -
Other income 18,720 19,455

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statement

As previously

As reclassified reported
Statement of comprehensive income
Revenues
Interest income 631 -
Other income 26,170 26,801

The reclassifications had no effect to previously reported profit for the year or shareholders’
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38.

39.

Event after the reporting period

On 19 February 2021, the Company and its subsidiary have been approved for long term loan
facilities of Baht 80 million and 10 million, respectively from a financial institution in order to

support the business operations of the Company and its subsidiary.

The loan agreements contain several covenants which, among other things, require
the Company and its subsidiary to maintain debt-to-equity ratio and debt service coverage

ratio at the rate prescribed in the agreements.

Such above loan facilities will be secured by the mortgage of land and structures thereon and

a condominium unit of the Company.

On 22 February 2021, the Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2021 passed the resolution to

approve the entering of such loan agreements and the mortgage of such properties.
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
22 February 2021.
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